From: icsai MPR:

To: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX; Trumpy, Chris EMPR:EX
Cc: Sangha, Karina EMPR:EX

Subject: FW: Brucejack ECDA

Date: Thursday, October 6, 2016 8:54:29 AM
Attachments: Brucejack ECDA Work Plan Oct 5.docx

FYI; as promised, attached is the Brucejack ECDA workplan from MARR.

From: Robertson, Linda G ABR:EX

Sent: Wednesday, October 5, 2016 9:20 AM

To: Csicsai, Peter MEM:EX

Cc: Sangha, Karina MEM:EX; Kerr, Paul ABR:EX; Disbrow, Jamie ABR:EX; Oliemans, Fred ABR:EX;
Brewer, Kristen ABR:EX; Donaldson, Nedinska ABR:EX

Subject: RE: Brucejack ECDA

Peter,
Attached is the work plan. Let us know if you have any questions.

Linda Robertson
Manager, Skeena Region
Ministry of Aboriginal Relations and Reconciliation

3726 Alfred Ave., Smithers, BC VOJ 2NO
Tel: (250) 847-7504

From: Kerr, Paul ABR:EX

Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:07 PM

To: Csicsai, Peter MEM:EX; Disbrow, Jamie ABR:EX; Oliemans, Fred ABR:EX; Robertson, Linda G ABR:EX;
Brewer, Kristen ABR:EX; Donaldson, Nedinska ABR:EX

Cc: Sangha, Karina MEM:EX

Subject: RE: Brucejack ECDA

Peter — our regional folks are putting together an engagement plan for Brucejack. As soon as we
have something to share, I'll advise.

Thanks.

From: Csicsai, Peter MEM:EX

Sent: Monday, September 26, 2016 4:01 PM

To: Disbrow, Jamie ABR:EX; Kerr, Paul ABR:EX; Oliemans, Fred ABR:EX
Cc: Sangha, Karina MEM:EX

Subject: Brucejack ECDA

Hi All —

| wanted to touch base on the Brucejack ECDA work. You will recall on our last call that MARR was
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going to do up a workplan with key milestones and deliverables to get this over the line. Have you
had a chance to develop this? My executive is keen to keep this work moving, and this would be a

very useful tool to have.

Many thanks,

Peter Csicsai

Director, First Nations and Strategic Initiatives
Ministry of Energy and Mines

Office: (250) 953-3800 | Mobile: (250) 858-8255
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Brucejack ECDA Work Plan

Approved mandate to share mineral tax revenue from Brucejack as follows:s.13,5.16

$.13,5.16
First Team Approach Task Lead / Target
Nation date |
Nisga’a | Kristen Brewer s.16

(Regional

Negotiator)

Nedinska |

Donaldson

(Implementation)

Boris Tyzak (JAG) |
Tahltan | Fred Oliemans

(Regional

Negotiator)

Becky Black (JAG)
TSKLH Fred Oliemans

and/or Kristen
Brewer (Regional
Negotiator)
Becky Black (JAG)
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From: icsai PR:

To: Peter PR:

Cc: Trumpy, Chris EMPR:EX; Sangha, Karina EMPR:EX
Subject: FW: draft email for Peter re: Brucejack ECDA
Date: Thursday, October 27, 2016 3:21:59 PM

Hi Peter; we discussed progress with MARR regarding Brucejack ECDA negotiations, and wanted to
give you a heads up on a couple of items.

s.13,5.14,5.16
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From: icsai PR:

To: Trumpy, Chris EMPR:EX

Cc: Sangha, Karina EMPR:EX

Subject: Brucejack ECDA Update

Date: Monday, February 6, 2017 2:46:54 PM

FYI; Brucejack ECDA for Nisga’a is very close. Tahltan are not far behind, but this will depend on the

offer made. 513816

s.13,5.16

Peter Csicsai

Director, First Nations and Strategic Initiatives
Ministry of Energy and Mines

Office: (250) 953-3800 | Mobile: (250) 858-8255
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From: Trumpy, Chris EMPR:EX

To: h ri PR:
Subject: FW: Emailing: 98086 Brucejack BN (5)
Date: Thursday, March 9, 2017 1:29:25 PM

Attachments: 98086 Brucejack BN (5).docx

FYT - here is the final to update.

From: Musgrove, Kate MEM:EX

Sent: Thursday, March 9, 2017 1:29 PM

To: Trumpy, Chris MEM:EX

Subject: Emailing: 98086 Brucejack BN (5)

Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments:
98086 Brucejack BN (5)

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain types of file
attachments. Check your e-mail security settings to determine how attachments are handled.
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Csicsai, Peter EMPR:EX

e ——— e
From: Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 4:08 PM
To: Trumpy, Chris MEM:EX; Wijtkamp, Peter MEM:EX; Csicsai, Peter MEM:EX
Cc: Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX; Oliemans, Fred IRR:EX; Kaiser, Patrick IRR:EX;
Brunette, Greg IRR:EX
Subject: Fiscal tiering for Brucejack revenue sharing

Hi to all,

As per the discussion | just had with Peter W., MIRR staff are preparing a draft revenue sharing agreement for the
Tahltan Nation re: the Brucejack Project.

Analysis indicates that Brucejack, in conjunction with other current and potential future mine projects in Tahltan
territory, could generate revenues that would trigger the need for fiscal tiering consideration, under the current
direction on mine revenue sharing.

s.13,5.16

We are still working out that language as this is the first time the multiple projects are not captured within one
agreement as was the case in the Ktunaxa and Treaty 8 coal ECDAs. We have not finalized the language yet.

If you have thoughts, concerns or insight you wish to raise please provide (why | have cc’d our team so that all can be
aware). A call can also be set up if you wish.

In terms of timing, discussion with Tahltan (Rob M.) about the drafting could start as early as tonight.

s.16 All
best, Jamie

Jamie Disbrow

Assistant Negotiator, Integrated Negotiations Branch
Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation
Tel: 250 953-3731 Fax: 250 387-0887
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Csicsai, Peter EMPR:EX

From: Avila, Amy EMPR:EX

Sent: Tuesday, March 20, 2018 11:16 AM

To: Csicsai, Peter EMPR:EX; Prsala, James EMPR:EX

Subject: FW: Modified Certainty Language on Tahltan Brucejack ECDA Decision Note

From: Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX

Sent: Tuesday, March 20, 2018 7:14 AM
To: Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX

Cc: Ward, Colin IRR:EX; McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX; Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX; :
Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; Sangha, Karina EMPR:EX; Black, Becky JAG:EX '
Subject: Re: Modified Certainty Language on Tahltan Brucejack ECDA Decision Note

Thanks Simon

On your first point - agree we still move forward with broader ecda certainty piece with revenue share.

On your second point - I'm afraid there is a misunderstanding. | was pointing out that my DM needs to be oriented to
this specific decision note by explaining the work we’ve been doing on adding the certainty provision in the broader
context. It was not to juxtapose that addition against process improvement.

If you need further clarity, please feel free to call.

Sent from my iPhone

Trish Balcaen

A/Assistant Deputy Minister

Negotiations and Regional Operations Division
Ministry of Indigenous Relations

(250) 896-1902

On Mar 20, 2018, at 6:57 AM, Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX <Simon.Coley@gov.bc.ca> wrote:

Thanks Colin and Trish,

The note looks fine to me. | fixed one typo.

I'll leave it to you to obtain a MAG response (if that hasn't been done already).
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With respect to the related certainty policy note, | had a good meeting with Colin last week and

understand he's revising the BN on the certainty policy issues. $.12.5.13
$.12,8.13

s.16

Thanks,

Simon Coley

Assistant Deputy Minister, Strategic and Indigenous Affairs
Ministry of Energy, Mines and Petroleum Resources
778-698-7176 (office) s.17 (cell)

From: Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX

Sent: March-20-18 6:12 AM

To: Ward, Colin IRR:EX

Cc: Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX; McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX
Subject: Re: Modified Certainty Language on Tahltan Brucejack ECDA Decision Note

Thank you Colin. I think this is a good decision note.

Couple of observations (to be managed in verbal briefing with Doug Caul):

- Doug is not yet aware that EMPR wishes to include new provisions in certainty language on ECDA - he
is expecting the process improvement - so he will need an explanation to help him understand that
dynamic;

- Doug will also want to know that this decision is supported by MAG;

- we'll also need to confirm this decision is within he and Dave’s purview to make (I think it is);

2
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- assuming Simon agrees with this note, we’ll need to seek a briefing now for early next week.

|
Thanks! .
Trish :

Sent from my iPhone

Trish Balcaen |
A/Assistant Deputy Minister ‘
Negotiations and Regional Operations Division
Ministry of Indigenous Relations

(250) 896-1902

On Mar 19, 2018, at 8:27 PM, Ward, Colin IRR:EX <Colin.Ward @gov.bc.ca> wrote:

Hi Simon and Trish —

As per the conversations with you both last week, we're seeking approval from our
respective DMs to use the modified ECDA certainty language for the Tahltan Brucejack
ECDA. As set out in the note, Tahltan have expressed an interest to finalize the ECDA
prior to fiscal YE and modified certainty language is required to support that effort.
Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,

Colin Ward |
Executive Director, Integrated Negotiations Branch ||
Ministry of indigenous Relations and Reconciliation
T:250-953-3328  C: 250-812-7938

<44207 20180315 DN Brucejack Tahltan ECDA certainty language.docx>
<44207 DN Brucejack Tahltan ECDA certainty language 21Mar18.docx>
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ﬂla, Amy EMPR:EX

= —— ——— e e
From: Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX
Sent: Tuesday, March 20, 2018 11:20 AM
To: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX; Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX
Cc: Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX; Ward, Colin IRR:EX; McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX;
Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; Sangha, Karina EMPR:EX; Black, Becky JAG:EX
Subject: RE: Modified Certainty Language on Tahltan Brucejack ECDA Decision Note

Hi Peter -s.16
s.16 Cheers, J.

From: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX

Sent: Tuesday, March 20, 2018 7:49 AM

To: Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX

Cc: Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX; Ward, Colin IRR:EX; McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX;
Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; Sangha, Karina EMPR:EX; Black, Becky JAG:EX

Subject: Re: Modified Certainty Language on Tahltan Brucejack ECDA Decision Note

| am ok with the note and option... can you remind me of how much we are sharing with Tahltan for Brucejack in
comparison to others.

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
understand he's revising the BN on the certainty policy issues. s.12,s.13
5.12,5.13

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

Thank you Colin. | think this is a good decision note.

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

- we’ll also need to confirm this decision is within he and Dave’s purview to make (I think it is);

- assuming Simon agrees with this note, we’ll need to seek a briefing now for early next week.

Thanks!
Trish

Sent from my iPhone

Trish Balcaen

A/Assistant Deputy Minister

Negotiations and Regional Operations Division

Ministry of Indigenous Relations

(250) 896-1902 l
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On Mar 19, 2018, at 8:27 PM, Ward, Colin IRR:EX <Colin.Ward@gov.bc.ca> wrote:

Hi Simon and Trish —

As per the conversations with you both last week, we’re seeking approval from our
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
Colin Ward
Executive Director, Integrated Negotiations Branch

Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation
T:250-953-3328  C:250-812-7938

<44207 20180315 DN Brucejack Tahltan ECDA certainty language.docx>
<44207 DN Brucejack Tahltan ECDA certainty language 21Mar18.docx>
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Avila, Amy EMPR:EX |

From: Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX
Sent: Tuesday, April 3, 2018 11:26 AM ‘
To: Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; Black, Becky JAG:EX; Csicsai, Peter EMPR:EX; Draeseke, Rob IRR:EX;
Kaiser, Patrick IRR:EX; Timmis, Mark JAG:EX
Cc: Oliemans, Fred IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX
Subject: Final agreement doc re: Tahltan Brucejack
Attachments: Acknowledged_Initialed_Copy_2018 03 31 Brucejack RSA Tahltan Nation (Woo....pdf

Hi to everyone,

Attached please find the Tahltan Brucejack ECDA, which is in the process of being executed with the Tahltan, for your
reference. Please advise if any questions or concerns, All best, Jamie

Jamie Disbrow

Assistant Negotiator, Integrated Negotiations Branch
Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation
Tel: 250 953-3731 Fax: 250 387-0887
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REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT

This Agreement is dated the day of 2018.

BETWEEN

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN
IN RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
as represented by the Minister of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation

(“British Columbia”)
and

TAHLTAN NATION
as represented by the Tahltan Central Government, the Iskut Band and the Tahltan Band
(hereinafter the “Tahltan”)

(each a “Party”, together referred to as the “Parties”)

Whereas:

A. Tahltan have Aboriginal Rights within Tahltan Territory;

B. The Tahltan Central Government is a governing entity of the Tahltan responsible for
Aboriginal rights and title and represents the interests of the Tahltan people;

C. The Parties have a shared commitment to align and strengthen their relationship, on a
government-to-government basis, consistent with the June 26, 2014 Tsilhgot’in Nation
decision of the Supreme Court of Canada and the United Nations Declaration on the
Rights of Indigenous Peoples, and respectful of Tahltan stewardship responsibilities in
Tahltan Territory;

D. The Parties recognize and affirm a mutual commitment to social, community and
economic development and to taking tangible steps together in the interest of
advancing reconciliation;

E. The Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to establish terms regarding revenue-
sharing for the Project on a long-term basis, as set out in this Agreement;

F. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement will be directly impacted by the success of
the Project; and

G. The Parties acknowledge that the arrangements set out in this Agreement are an interim
step towards further reconciliation.

{00155097.1} Page 1
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Now, therefore, the Parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1 Definitions
1.1 In this Agreement:

“Aboriginal Rights” means asserted or determined Aboriginal Rights, including Aboriginal title,
recognized and affirmed by section 35(1) of the Constitution Act, 1982;

“Agreement” means this Revenue Sharing Agreement in relation to the Project, including all of
its appendices, annexes and schedules;

“Band Council Resolution” means a resolution made by a “council of the band” within the
meaning of the Indian Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. 1-5;

“BC Fiscal Year” means a period beginning on April 1 of a calendar year and ending on
March 31 of the next calendar year;

“Consultation Process” means the process set out in Section 11;

“Dispute” means, subject to subsection 13.4, any disagreement regarding the interpretation or
implementation of this Agreement for which a written Notice of Dispute is given in accordance
with subsection 13.5.;

“Effective Date of the Agreement” means the date upon which this Agreement has been
signed by the Parties’ duly authorized representatives;

“Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act” means the Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 165;

“Government Actions” means all authorizations, permits, licences, approvals, Crown land
dispositions, agreements, completed processes and other decisions, whatsoever entered into
or otherwise taken by British Columbia, in relation to the Project;

“Mine Fiscal Year” means a “fiscal year of a mine” as defined in the Mineral Tax Act;

“Mineral Tax Act” means the Mineral Tax Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 291, as amended from time to
time, and legislation in addition to or in substitution therefore which assesses a tax in favour of
British Columbia similar to the tax presently assessed under the Mineral Tax Act;

“Net Mineral Tax Revenue” means the total amount of tax, penalty and interest paid by the
Operator under the Mineral Tax Act in respect of the Project, less the total amount of tax,
penalty and interest refunded and interest paid to the Operator under the Mineral Tax Act in
respect of the Project, but does not in either case include a Post-Closure Reclamation Amount;

“Notice of a Dispute” means a written notice provided by a Party in accordance with

subsection 13.5;
I e —
{00155097.1) Page 2
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“Notice to Arbitrate” means a notice provided by a Party in accordance with subsection 13.10;

“Notice to Mediate” means a notice provided by either Party in accordance with subsection
13.9;

“Notice to Terminate” means a written notice to terminate this Agreement provided by
Tahltan or British Columbia in accordance with subsection 10.5;

“Operator” means the “operator”, as defined in the Mineral Tax Act, of the Project;

“Payment Statement” means the statement in respect of the Project containing the tax
information that British Columbia will provide to Tahltan under Schedule 1 subsection 3.2;

“Post-Closure Reclamation Amount” means an amount paid by an Operator or refunded to an
Operator in respect of a reclamation tax credit for a Mine Fiscal Year commencing after
production at the Project has ceased;

“Project” means the Brucejack Gold Mine project described in Schedule 1, section 1;

“Provincial Agency” means British Columbia, including any minister, public official or employee
of British Columbia, or person acting on behalf of, or as an agent for British Columbia, and any
government corporation;

“Revenue Sharing Payments” means the payments to be made by British Columbia to Tahltan
each year for the Project pursuant to section 2 and in accordance with Schedule 1, and
“Revenue Sharing Payment” means any one such payment;

“Shared Decision Making Agreement” means the Shared Decision Making Agreement between
British Columbia and the Tahltan Nation, dated March 14, 2013, and includes any amendments,
or successor agreements, to it, as may be agreed to by the Parties;

“Societies Act” means the Societies Act, S.B.C. 2015, c. 18;

“Tahltan Account” means the bank account established by Tahltan pursuant to Schedule 1
subsection 3.11 to receive Revenue Sharing Payments under this Agreement;

“Tahltan Central Government” means the society of that name incorporated under the
Societies Act;

“Tahltan Nation” or “Tahltan” means the Tahltan Central Government, the Iskut Band and
Tahltan Band, which represent Tahltan People;

“Tahltan People” means all those persons who are collectively entitled to exercise the
Aboriginal Rights of Tahltan in the Tahltan Territory;

“Tahltan Territory” means the traditional territory of Tahltan located within British Columbia as

{00155097.1} Page 3
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shown in Annex “B”; and

“Term” has the meaning given to that term in section 9.
SECTION 2 Revenue Sharing Payments

2.1  British Columbia will provide Revenue Sharing Payments to Tahltan in accordance with
Schedule 1.

SECTION 3 Confidential Information

3.1 Confidential information

a. Tahltan will keep confidential any information that British Columbia marks as
“confidential”, including Payment Statements and any information that relates to
tax payments under the Mineral Tax Act, and will not disclose such information
to any other person unless compelled to do otherwise by law.

b. Notwithstanding paragraph 3.1 (a), British Columbia’s obligation to provide a
Payment Statement and other information that is confidential under the Mineral
Tax Act is subject to it obtaining written consent to sharing such information
from the Operator. Tahltan acknowledges that British Columbia has informed
them of these requirements.

c. Notwithstanding paragraph 3.1 (a), Tahltan may disclose confidential information
to their advisors, including legal, financial, tax and other professional advisors,
provided that those advisors agree in writing to keep the information
confidential.

d. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Tahltan may disclose the
amount of Revenue Sharing Payments to the Tahltan People.

e. Where Tahltan share knowledge or information with British Columbia for the
purposes of this Agreement and that knowledge or information is identified in
writing as confidential or sensitive:

i.  British Columbia will make all reasonable efforts to prevent the disclosure
of that information to the public, subject to the Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act, or as otherwise required by law; and

ii. Where British Columbia receives a request under the Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act, for disclosure of confidential
information received from Tahltan, British Columbia will provide Tahltan
with a notice of the request and the opportunity to express their views
regarding the disclosure.

e ———
{00155097.1} Page 4

Page 22 of 53 EM P-2018-845£18



SECTION 4 Reports

4.1 If requested by British Columbia, Tahltan will provide a summary report once per fiscal
year, substantially in the form set out in Schedule 2, regarding the projects or initiatives
to which Revenue Sharing Payments may have been allocated in the previous fiscal year.

4.2  The Parties agree that British Columbia has no liability to Tahltan or the Tahltan People ‘
for the management of the Tahltan Account established under Schedule 1, subsection
3.11, or the allocation or use of monies in the Tahltan Account.

SECTION 5 Certainty

5.1 The Parties agree that the Revenue Sharing Payments provided under this Agreement
are an economic accommodation and constitute a component of any accommodation or
compensation that may be required for any impacts or infringements to Tahltan
Aboriginal Rights as a result of Government Actions.

5.2 If the Tahltan Central Government, the Iskut Band or the Tahltan Band impedes or
effectively stops the operation of the Project by way of:

a. challenging or impeding access by British Columbia or the Operator, or any of
their respective employees, contractors, agents, representatives or invitees, to
the Project to carry out activities associated with the development and
operations of the Project, or

b. obtaining relief in an application or legal proceeding

British Columbia’s right to suspend Revenue Sharing Payments or to terminate this
Agreement pursuant to section 10 will be triggered.

5.3  Tahltan will provide reasonable assistance to British Columbia in seeking to resolve any
actions by Tahltan People that challenge or impede access by British Columbia or an
Operator, or any of their respective employees, contractors, agents, representatives or
invitees, to the Project to carry out activities associated with the development and
operations of the Project.

5.4 For greater certainty, nothing in this Agreement:

a. limits or waives Tahltan’s right, if any, to hold the Province accountable for
compliance with, or implementation of, mitigation and accommodation
measures for the benefit of Tahltan developed through consultation, processes
under the Shared Decision Making Agreement where applicable, the
environmental assessment process administered by the Environmental
Assessment Office, or any other regulatory processes; or

b. releases British Columbia from any duties, obligations, or potential liabilities it

e I S —
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may have related to the environmental management and operation of the
Project.

SECTION 6 Further Revenue Sharing

6.1 Where British Columbia provides another First Nation or group of First Nations with
more than 37.5% of the eligible Net Mineral Tax Revenue from a particular mine or mine
expansion British Columbia will provide notice to Tahltan and the Parties will meet to
discuss further potential revenue sharing opportunities for Tahltan from the Project.

6.2  The Parties acknowledge the Province has current fiscal management policies that relate
to mineral tax revenue which could be triggered through the Revenue Sharing Payments
under this Agreement, or considered cumulatively with mineral tax revenue sharing
payments under other agreements between the Parties. If such a policy is triggered, the
Province will notify Tahltan and the Parties will discuss potential implications that may
be considered in relation to this Agreement.

6.3  The Tahltan do not, by entering into this Agreement, endorse or accept the provincial
policies referenced in section 6.2, and nothing in this Agreement is to be interpreted in a
manner that suggests that it does.

SECTION 7 Continuing Obligations

7.1  The Parties’ covenants, rights and obligations, as set out in subsections 3.1
(confidentiality), 5.1 (component of accommodation) and this section 7 are intended to
survive and to remain fully binding on the Parties and enforceable, despite the
expiration of the Term or termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 8 Assignment

8.1  Tahltan will not assign, either directly or indirectly, this Agreement or any right of
Tahltan under this Agreement without the prior written consent of British Columbia.

SECTIONY9 Term

9.1 The Term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will continue for
as long as the tax, interest and penalties payable by an Operator in respect of the
Project are subject to payment or reassessment under the applicable legislation.

9.2 Despite subsection 9.1, both Parties may:
a. agree in writing to terminate this Agreement in its entirety on an earlier date; or

b. exercise their respective rights to terminate this Agreement pursuant to
section 10.

e T ——BISSS e
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SECTION 10 Suspension of Revenue Sharing Payments and Termination

10.1 British Columbia may suspend the Revenue Sharing Payments where:
a. Tahltan impedes or effectively stops operation of the Project; or

b. any representation or warranty made by Tahltan in this Agreement is untrue or
incorrect.

10.2 British Columbia will:

a. provide written notice to Tahltan of the issue or non-compliance giving rise to
any suspended Revenue Sharing Payment under subsection 10.1 prior to
suspending the payment; and

b. make any Revenue Sharing Payments it would otherwise have been required to
make within sixty (60) days of the day the cause for the suspension is remedied.

10.3 If the Revenue Sharing Payments are suspended under subsection 10.1 and this
Agreement is terminated under subsection 10.4, Tahltan will be deemed to have fully
released and discharged British Columbia from all of its obligations in respect of the
suspended Revenue Sharing Payments.

10.4 This Agreement may be terminated prior to the end of the Term:
a. by Tahltan on the grounds set out in subsection 10.8;
b. by British Columbia on the grounds set out in subsection 10.9;
¢. by mutual agreement of the Parties; or

d. by either Party providing 90 days notice.

10.5 Where a Party intends to terminate under subsection 10.4, that Party must issue a
Notice to Terminate to the other Party that provides:

a. ninety (90) days notice of the intent to terminate; and

b. the reasons for terminating.

10.6 A Party may rescind a Notice to Terminate at any time prior to expiration of the
ninety (90) day period.

10.7 During the ninety (90) day period, representatives of the Parties may meet in order to
discuss the circumstances which gave rise to the written Notice to Terminate and in
order to determine whether there is a basis for rescinding the Notice.

10.8 Tahltan may terminate this Agreement where:
a. British Columbia is not in compliance with its obligations under this agreement; or

= ——
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b. any representation or warranty made by British Columbia in this Agreement is
untrue or incorrect.

10.9 British Columbia may terminate this agreement where:
a. Tahltan is not in compliance with its obligations under this Agreement;
b. impedes or effectively stops operation of the Project; or

c. any representation or warranty made by Tahltan in this Agreement is untrue or
incorrect.

10.10 Except as provided in section 7 [Continuing Obligations], where a Notice to Terminate is
not withdrawn within ninety (90) days, the Parties will be released and discharged from
their obligations under this Agreement.

SECTION 11 Consultation Process

11.1 Tahltan and Provincial Agencies will continue to engage through the consultation
processes utilized by the Parties in relation to the Project prior to, and in effect at the
Effective Date of this Agreement, for the purposes of seeking to meet consultation
obligations in regard to Government Actions.

11.2 The Parties may agree to apply processes under the Shared Decision Making Agreement
subject to the parameters of that Agreement, or other processes developed by the
Parties, or arising as a result of changes to government consultation and engagement
policies, to any Government Actions after the Effective Date.

SECTION 12 Representations and Warranties

12.1 Tahltan represents and warrants to British Columbia, on which British Columbia will rely
in entering into this Agreement, the following:

a. the Tahltan Central Government is a duly incorporated and subsisting society
under the Societies Act;

b. the Tahltan Central Government has the legal power, capacity and authority to
enter into this Agreement and act for, and on behalf, of Tahltan People with
respect to Tahltan Aboriginal Rights, and to make the acknowledgements and
representations in this Agreement;

c. the Tahltan Band has the legal power, capacity and authority to enter into this
Agreement for, and on behalf of Tahltan Band members and to make the
covenants, acknowledgements and representations in this Agreement;

d. the Iskut Band has the legal power, capacity and authority to enter into this
Agreement for and on behalf of the Iskut Band members and to make the
covenants, acknowledgements and representations in this Agreement;

{00155097.1} Page 8
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e. the Tahltan Central Government, the Tahltan Band and the Iskut Band have each
obtained or had the opportunity to obtain the advice of their own financial, legal,
tax and other professional advisors with respect to this Agreement;

f. the Tahltan Central Government, the Tahltan Band and the Iskut Band enter into
this Agreement for and on behalf of all Tahltan People; and

g. Tahltan has provided true or certified copies of the Tahltan Central Government
Directors’ Resolutions and the Band Council Resolutions of the Tahltan Band and
the Iskut Band approving this Agreement and providing authority for the
authorized signatories to sign this Agreement, and that such resolutions have not
been varied, amended, repealed or replaced.

12.2 British Columbia represents and warrants to Tahltan that it has the authority to enter
into this Agreement and to carry out its obligations in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement and this Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of British Columbia.

SECTION 13 Dispute Resolution

13.1 The Parties will endeavour to resolve any Disputes in a co-operative, effective and
timely manner.

13.2 The Parties may agree to vary a procedural requirement contained in this section as it
applies to a particular Dispute.

13.3 The Parties agree to use the processes set out in this section to attempt to resolve all
Disputes, including any Dispute that may give rise to a right to terminate pursuant to
subsection 10.4 prior to a Notice of Termination being issued.

13.4 For greater certainty, the processes set out in this section will not be used:

a. once a Notice to Terminate has been issued;

b. to resolve a disagreement relating to mitigation and accommodation measures
concerning the operation or decommissioning of the Project; or

c. to resolve a disagreement regarding the calculation of Revenue Sharing
Payments.

13.5 Any Party may give a written Notice of Dispute to the other Party which includes a
summary of the particulars of the dispute.

13.6 Within fifteen (15) working days, the Parties will meet and will attempt to resolve the
Dispute through unassisted collaborative negotiation.
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13.7 No Party may commence a court proceeding concerning a Dispute prior to completion
of the unassisted collaborative negotiation pursuant to subsection 12.6, except:

a. to prevent the loss of a right of action due to the expiration of a limitation
period;
b. to obtain interlocutory or interim relief; or

c. if the matter is considered by the Party to be of an urgent nature.

13.8 Where a Dispute is not resolved through unassisted collaborative negotiation pursuant
to subsection 12.6, the Parties may:

a. exercise their respective rights, including any right to issue a Notice to
Terminate; or

b. by agreement of the Parties, undertake further efforts to resolve the Dispute
through one or both of mediation or arbitration, as set out below.

13.9 The following will apply to any mediation that the Parties agree to pursue:

a. the Party that issued the Notice of Dispute will prepare a Notice to Mediate that
states the issue that the Parties have agreed to put to mediation;

b. the Parties will appoint a mediator who is neutral, objective and experienced in
mediation within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the Notice to Mediate. If the
Parties cannot agree on the appointment, the Mediate BC Society, or its
successor organization, will appoint the mediator from a roster maintained by
that organization;

c. the mediator’s role is to facilitate discussion, understanding and dispute
resolution between the Parties. The mediator will not have any authority to
impose a solution on the Parties;

d. the mediation is terminated at the earliest of:

i. the expiration of thirty (30) days after the appointment of the mediator
or any longer period agreed to by the Parties,

ii. the withdrawal from the mediation of a Party by notice in writing to the
mediator, provided that no such Party may withdraw until after the first
meeting with the mediator,

iii. the date on which the Parties agree in writing to terminate the mediation,
or

iv. the date on which the Parties sign a written agreement resolving the
Dispute;

e. the Parties will:

i. onrequest of the other Party, provide timely disclosure of sufficient
e —
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information and documents to enable a full examination of the subject
matter being negotiated, with the exception of privileged documents and
subject to applicable information and privacy legislation and other laws
imposing confidentiality requirements,

ii. make every reasonable effort to appoint negotiating representatives with
sufficient authority to reach an agreement, or with ready access to such
authority, and

iii. negotiate in good faith;

f. the mediation process and all its related proceedings will be and will remain
confidential, unless the Parties agree otherwise;

g. a Party may withdraw from mediation at any time by providing written notice of
its intent to the mediator, subject to subparagraph 13.9(d)(ii);

h. the mediation will not restrict in any way the positions that each of the Parties
may take in any dispute, arbitration or court proceeding;

i. the mediator will not issue a report or make any recommendations unless
requested to do so in writing by the Parties;

j. any agreement reached through mediation will be recorded in writing, signed by
authorized representatives of the Parties and delivered to the Parties; and

k. the Parties will each bear the costs of their own participation, representation and
appointments in the mediation. The Parties will share equally all common costs
of the mediation, including fees of the mediator, costs of meeting rooms, actual
and reasonable disbursements incurred by the mediator and fees of the Mediate
BC Society.

13.10 The following will apply to any arbitration that the Parties agree to pursue:

a. the Party that issued the Notice of Dispute will prepare a Notice to Arbitrate that
states the issue the Parties have agreed to put to arbitration;

b. the Parties will appoint an arbitrator who is neutral, objective and experienced in
arbitration within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the Notice to Arbitrate. If
the Parties cannot agree on the appointment, the British Columbia International
Commercial Arbitration Centre, or its successor organization, will appoint the
arbitrator from a roster maintained by that organization;

c. the arbitration process and all its related proceedings will be and will remain
confidential, unless the Parties agree otherwise;

d. subject to the exceptions in applicable arbitration legislation, the decision of the
arbitrator is final and binding on the Parties for the term of this Agreement; and

e. except as otherwise ordered by the arbitrator:

i. the Parties will each bear the costs of their own participation,

e —
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representation and appointments in the arbitration, and

ii. the Parties will share equally all common costs of the arbitration,
including fees of the arbitrator, costs of hearing and meeting rooms,
actual and reasonable disbursements incurred by the arbitrator and
administration fees of the British Columbia International Commercial
Arbitration Centre or other appointing authority.

13.11 The Parties may also choose other appropriate approaches to assist in reaching
resolution of the Dispute.

13.12 Nothing in this section 13 creates a cause of action where none otherwise exists.
SECTION 14 Notice and Delivery

14.1 Where in this Agreement any notice or other communication is required to be given by
any of the Parties, it will be made in writing. It will be effectively given:

a. by personal delivery to the address of the Party set out below, on the date of
delivery;

b. by pre-paid registered mail to the address of the Party mentioned in this
Agreement, on the date the registered mail is delivered; or

c. by facsimile, to the facsimile number of the Party set out in this Agreement, on
the date the facsimile is received.

14.2 The address and facsimile numbers of the Parties are:

a. Tahltan:

Tahltan Central Government
Box 69

Dease Lake BC VOC 1L0

Fax: (250) 771-3020
Attention: President

b. British Columbia:

Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation

2957 Jutland Road

Victoria, BC V8T 5J9

Fax: (250) 387-6073

Attention: Assistant Deputy Minister, Negotiations and Regional Operations
Division

14.3 Any Party may at any time give notice to the other Party of any change of address or
facsimile number in accordance with subsection 14.1.

R R R
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SECTION 15 General Provisions

15.1 This Agreement is not a treaty or land claim agreement within the meaning of
sections 25 and 35 of the Constitution Act, 1982.

15.2 This Agreement does not create, expand, amend, define, affirm, recognize, limit, deny,
abrogate, extinguish, replace or derogate from any Aboriginal Rights.

15.3 British Columbia acknowledges and enters into this Agreement on the basis that Tahltan
has Aboriginal Rights within Tahltan Territory.

15.4 This Agreement does not change or affect the position either Party has, or may have,
regarding its jurisdiction, responsibilities and decision-making authority.

15.5 This Agreement is not intended to be interpreted in a manner that would affect or fetter
the discretion of any decision-making authority.

15.6 No partnership, joint venture, agency, fiduciary or employment relationship will be
deemed to be created by this Agreement or by any actions of the Parties under this
Agreement.

15.7 Except as contemplated herein, this Agreement does not limit the position either Party
may take in any legal or administrative proceedings or in any discussions or negotiations
between the Parties.

15.8 Nothing in this Agreement is to be construed as an acceptance of or admission by a
Party of the position of the other Party or as an admission of liability and without
limiting the foregoing, this Agreement is not to be construed as an admission of:

a. the validity of, or any fact or liability in relation to, any claims for compensation
for alleged past or future infringements of Aboriginal Rights of any kind
whatsoever or whensoever arising in relation to such assertions;

b. the validity of any territorial claim or assertion of Aboriginal rights by any other
First Nation; or

c. an obligation to provide financial or economic benefits, as provided in this
Agreement, as part of British Columbia’s obligation to consult and, as
appropriate, accommodate in relation to Government Action relating to the
Project.

15.9 Nothing in this Agreement precludes any of the Tahltan from:

a. continuing to negotiate, implement and take steps to enforce any revenue and
benefits-sharing agreements with proponents and other governments;

b. accessing economic opportunities and benefits, which may be available to the
e —
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Tahltan, other than those expressly set out in this Agreement; or

c. participating in government programs for which any of the Tahltan may be
eligible.

15.10 Nothing in this Agreement limits, waives or restricts Tahltan’s right to seek recognition
of Tahltan title and/or rights to the Project area, or remedies flowing from those title
and/or rights, whether through court application or otherwise.

15.11 This Agreement is not intended to limit or diminish any present or future fiscal transfer
agreements between the Parties unrelated to this Agreement and its Appendices.

15.12 This Agreement and any amendment to it constitute the entire Agreement between the
Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Parties.

15.13 This Agreement may be amended by written agreement duly executed by both Parties.

15.14 The funds received under this Agreement are not, and are not intended to be,
considered as own source revenue for any purpose related to federal funding
arrangements, either in a treaty or non-treaty agreements.

15.15 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Revenue Sharing Payments to '
be provided by British Columbia to Tahltan are subject to:

a. there being sufficient monies available in an appropriation, as defined in the
Financial Administration Act, to enable British Columbia in any BC Fiscal Year or
part thereof when such payment is required, to make such payment; and

b. Treasury Board, as defined in the Financial Administration Act, not having
controlled or limited expenditure under any appropriation necessary in order to
make such payment.

SECTION 16 Interpretation

16.1 This Agreement is to be interpreted so that all the provisions are given as full effect as
possible.

16.2 This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the applicable
laws of British Columbia and Canada.

16.3 If any part of this Agreement is void or unenforceable at law, it shall be severed from
this Agreement and the rest of the Agreement shall remain in effect and fully
enforceable.

R R ———
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16.4 If any part of this Agreement is void or unenforceable at law, the Parties agree to
negotiate and attempt to reach agreement, to the extent reasonably possible and as
their respective interests may require, on a replacement for the severed part with a
view to achieving the intent of the Parties as expressed in this Agreement. The Parties
may agree to refer the matter to the dispute resolution process set out in section 13.

16.5 All headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not form a part of this
Agreement and are not intended to interpret, define, limit, enlarge, modify or explain

the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any of its provisions.

16.6 In this Agreement, words in the singular include the plural and words in the plural
include the singular unless the context or any specific definition otherwise requires.

16.7 The use of the word “including” is to be read as not limiting the generality of the
preceding term or phrase.

16.8 In this Agreement, any reference made to a statute includes all regulations made under
that statute and any amendments or replacements.

16.9 No term, condition, covenant or other provision of this Agreement will be considered to
have been waived by the Parties unless such waiver is expressed in writing by the
Parties.

16.10 All references in this Agreement to a designated section or other subdivision or to an
appendix are to the designated section or other subdivision of, or appendix to, this

Agreement.

16.11 Any reference to a corporate entity includes and is also a reference to any corporate
entity that was a predecessor to, or that is a successor to, such entity.

16.12 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and by facsimile by the Parties.

[the rest of this page left intentionally blank]
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16.13 There will be no presumption that any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement
should be interpreted in favour of either Party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement as set out below:

HER MAIJESTY THE QUEEN IN

RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA,
as represented by the

Minister of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation

Honourable Minister Scott Fraser Date

TAHLTAN, as represented by

President Chad Day Date
Tahltan Central Government

Chief Marie Quock Date
Iskut Band
Chief Rick McLean Date

Tahltan Band

Acknowledged by Robert McPhee, Negotiator for Tahltan: E /

Initials from Brock Roe, of Woodward & Co. Lawyers LLP: (£
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SCHEDULE 1

Brucejack Gold Mine Project Description and Payment Provisions
SECTION 1 Project Description

1.1  The Project means:

a. all works, undertakings, facilities and activities approved by Mines Act Permit M-
243 issued July 22, 2015, and located in the area depicted as the "Mine Area” in
the map attached as Annex A to this Agreement;

b. all access roads and transmission line right of ways associated with the Project
for which the Operator holds a permit, authorization or other form of tenure as
of the date of this Agreement and all associated infrastructure, operating sites
and facilities;

c. any changes, modifications or alterations to the works, undertakings and
facilities set out in paragraphs 1.1 (a) and (b), so long as such changes,
modifications or alterations occur within the Mine Area or the area subject to a
permit, authorization or other form of tenure held by the Operator as of the date
of this Agreement; and

d. all matters relating to the exploration, planning, permitting, construction,
maintenance, repair, operation and reclamation of the Project described in
paragraphs 1.1(a) to (c).

1.2  The Parties recognize that the Operator may propose a change, modification or
alteration to the Project that will expand the mine and revise the Mine Area and agree
that:

a. any Government Actions required to approve such proposals will be the subject
of consultation with and, where appropriate, accommodation of Tahltan as set
out in this Agreement;

b. nothing in this Schedule or the Agreement is to be interpreted or deemed as
providing Tahltan support for any Government Actions required to approve such
proposal; and

c. where the Mine Area is changed by Government Actions, the map attached as
Annex A will be amended to reflect the new Mine Area boundaries.

SECTION 2 Definitions

2.1 In this Schedule:

“Overpayment” means an amount paid by British Columbia under this Schedule that exceeds

the amount Tahltan was entitled to receive, including a negative Revenue Sharing Payment
_______________________________
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amount under subsection 3.1 (Revenue Sharing Payment), which may occur if an Operator has
paid more tax than required in a previous BC Fiscal Year or British Columbia has shared more
tax than required in a previous BC Fiscal Year; and

“Underpayment” means a Revenue Sharing Payment that was less than the amount Tahltan
was entitled to receive due to the inclusion of any tax, interest, or penalties paid by the
Operator that was less than the amount required in a previous BC Fiscal Year, or any other
adjustments.

SECTION 3 Payment Provisions

3.1  Revenue Sharing Payment. British Columbia will provide Revenue Sharing Payments to
Tahltan which will comprise 15% of the Net Mineral Tax Revenue, calculated as follows:

(15 % x Net Mineral Tax Revenue for a BC Fiscal Year) + Underpayment — Overpayment

3.2  Payment Statements. Within one hundred and fifty (150) days after the end of each BC
Fiscal Year beginning with the first BC Fiscal Year in which British Columbia receives
payment from the Operator under the Mineral Tax Act, British Columbia will provide
Tahltan with a Payment Statement containing the following information:

a. the Net Mineral Tax Revenue received in the BC Fiscal Year;
b. the amount of any Overpayment or Underpayment; and
c. the amount of the Revenue Sharing Payment

3.3  Timing of Revenue Sharing Payments. If the Revenue Sharing Payment for a BC Fiscal
Year is a positive amount, British Columbia will, within one hundred and eighty (180)
days after the end of the BC Fiscal Year for which the Revenue Sharing Payment is
calculated, pay Tahltan by depositing the Revenue Sharing Payment into the Tahltan
Account established under subsection 3.11 (Tahltan Account).

3.4 If, in a BC Fiscal Year, the payment amount is negative due to an Overpayment
exceeding the Net Mineral Tax Revenue, British Columbia may pay up to fifty (50)
percent of the amount that would have been paid in the absence of the Overpayment
amount to Tahltan and apply the remaining amount to the Overpayment balance until
the Overpayment amount is recovered.

3.5 No Further Operator Payments. If the Operator is no longer responsible for making
payments under the Mineral Tax Act such that there will be no subsequent Revenue
Sharing Payments to Tahltan, British Columbia will notify Tahltan of:

a. any Underpayment and will pay the Underpayment within one hundred and
eighty days (180) of the end of the BC Fiscal Year; and

e ]
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b. any Overpayment that remains outstanding and may deduct the Overpayment
from any amounts that may be payable to Tahltan under any other agreement
with British Columbia.

3.6 End of Term. If the term of this Agreement ends other than on the last day of a BC
Fiscal Year, no payment will be payable to Tahltan in relation to that portion of the BC
Fiscal Year after the date on which the term of this Agreement ends.

3.7  Fluctuations in Revenues. Tahltan acknowledges that revenues under the Mineral Tax
Act may fluctuate and that the Project Payments may vary over time.

3.8  Changes to Act. If, during the term of this Agreement, British Columbia makes any
changes to the Mineral Tax Act tax regime that will have the effect of reducing the
Revenue Sharing Payments, British Columbia will notify Tahltan and the Parties will
discuss potential alternative revenue sharing opportunities.

3.9 Reliance on Operator Information. Tahltan acknowledges that British Columbia is
entitled to rely on information provided by the Operator and that, while British
Columbia will use reasonable efforts to ensure the accuracy of the information, the
determination of the Net Mineral Tax Revenue is based on approximations and are
therefore subject to imprecision.

3.10 Disclaimer. British Columbia makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy of
the information provided by the Operator and no proceeding lies against it in relation to
any claim that the information provided by the Operator was inaccurate.

3.11 Bank Account. Tahltan will:

a. establish and maintain in their name a bank account at a Canadian financial
institution for the purpose of receiving Revenue Sharing Payments;

b. provide British Columbia with the information under paragraph 3.11(a) to enable
British Columbia to directly deposit the Revenue Sharing Payments;

c. notify British Columbia of any change under paragraph 3.11(a), which will be
evidenced by band council resolution which British Columbia will be entitled to
rely on; and

d. maintain the bank account under paragraph 3.11(a) until twelve (12) months
after the receipt of the last Revenue Sharing Payment.

3.12 Delivery of Payments

a. British Columbia will deposit Revenue Sharing Payments directly into the Payment
Account established under paragraph 3.11(a).

- - - . -
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b. Tahltan may designate another entity to receive Revenue Sharing Payments
under paragraph 3.12(a) and, if such a designation is made, Tahltan will notify
British Columbia.

c. All payments which British Columbia is obliged to make pursuant to the
Agreement are to be remitted to the Tahltan Account.

d. For greater certainty, British Columbia will not be obligated to make any
payments under this Agreement until Tahltan has complied with subsection 3.11
to the reasonable satisfaction of British Columbia.

3.13 If Tahltan disagrees with the amount of a Revenue Sharing Payment, Tahltan may give
notice to British Columbia and on such notice the Parties will meet as soon as
practicable to discuss the matter of concern and British Columbia will review the matter
and take any remedial actions required.

e ——— e ————— e ——————— e
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ANNEX A Brucejack Gold Mine
Map Showing Project (Mine) Area — Mining Lease Boundary
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ANNEX B

Map showing Tahitan Territory

This map represents the general boundaries of Tahltan Territory as provided by Tahltan, based on the
information available and reviewed as of the date of the map’s creation. It does not represent a
definitive or final statement by Tahltan of the areas to which Tahltan Aboriginal Rights apply. Tahltan
continue to do research and assemble further information and data, and adjustments to the boundaries
reflected in this map may be made in the future where appropriate and supported by evidence.
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Revenue Sharing Payments Summary Report

SCHEDULE 2

Community Priorities

2015/2016 Planned
Expenditures

2015/2016 Actual
Expenditures

Outcomes Achieved
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Avila, Amy EMPR:EX

From: Ward, Colin IRR:EX
Sent: Wednesday, April 4, 2018 9:36 AM
To: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX
Cc: Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX; Coley, Simon J
EMPR:EX
Subject: RE:s.13
Hi Peter —
s.13

| anticipate that Doug will be sending the note out this week.
Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,
Colin

From: Ward, Colin IRR:EX

Sent: Wednesday, March 28, 2018 10:36 AM

To: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX

Cc: Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX; Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX
Subject: s.13

Hi Peter
s.13

Please let me know if you have any concerns with the note. We are looking to circulate this to DMs
electronically as soon as possible.

Thanks,
Colin
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Avila, Amy EMPR:EX

From: Ward, Colin IRR:EX
Sent: Wednesday, April 4, 2018 12:11 PM
To: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX
Cc: Avila, Amy EMPR:EX; Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX
Subject: Fwd: s.13
Attachments: 44207 20180315 .13 : Apr 3.docx;
ATT00001.htm
Hi Peter,
s.13
Thanks,
Colin

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Caul, Doug D IRR:EX" <Doug.Caul@gov.bc.ca>

Date: April 4, 2018 at 11:28:36 AM PDT

To: FLNR Executive Operations DMC NR <EXOPDMC@Victorial.gov.bc.ca>
Subject: s.13

s.13

Thanks,
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Avila, Amy EMPR:EX
e e

From: Coley, Simon J EMPR:EX

Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2018 2:50 PM

To: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX; Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX; Avila, Amy
EMPR:EX; Rollo, Andrew EMPR:EX

Subject: RE: FINAL PACKAGE - materials - Nisga'a event on Friday

First I've heard of it too.
Well done.

Simon

From: Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX

Sent: May 10, 2018 1:29 PM |
To: Balcaen, Trish L IRR:EX <Trish.Balcaen@gov.bc.ca>; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX <Jamie.Disbrow@gov.bc.ca>; Coley, |
Simon J EMPR:EX <Simon.Coley@gov.bc.ca>; Avila, Amy EMPR:EX <Amy.Avila@gov.bc.ca>; Rollo, Andrew EMPR:EX
<Andrew.Rollo@gov.bc.ca>

Subject: Fwd: FINAL PACKAGE - materials - Nisga'a event on Friday

Well done on the signing...

This is the first | have heard of this event... similar to the issue we had on the letter out to the Tahltan on Silvertip where
we missed on communication is there a way we can ensure that stuff is making it up to me... my apologies if this went
to Andrew while | was away or to Simon but | would be keen to know about Mines ECDA announcements as they are
being planned.

Congrats on the agreement and look forward to seeing photos

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Sanderson, Melissa EMPR:EX" <Melissa.Sanderson@gov.bc.ca>
To: "Robb, Peter L. EMPR:EX" <Peter.Robb@gov.bc.ca>
Subject: FW: FINAL PACKAGE - materials - Nisga'a event on Friday

From: Beaupre, Darren GCPE:EX

Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2018 12:48 PM
To: Sanderson, Melissa EMPR:EX

Cc: McNish, James EMPR:EX

Subject: Fwd: FINAL PACKAGE - materials - Nisga'a event on Friday

Melissa,
These should have reached us earlier. Regardless, would MMM like a quote? Materials attached and a
draft quote to consider here.
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“The Brucejack Mine and resulting economic development agreement showcase how collaboration
between First Nations and industry benefits all parties and is key to successful mineral development in
British Columbia,” said Minister of Energy, Mines and Petroleum Resources Michelle Mungall. “Our
government is committed to working with First Nations and Industry to build and strengthen these
relationships and partnerships.”

Sent from my iPhone
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From: Smyth, Danielle EMPRIEX

To: Waters, Cory IRR:EX
Subject: Re: FOR REVIEW: Tahltan ECDA announcement
Date: Monday, June 11, 2018 5:20:29 PM

Sorry Cory I may have missed this. Let me know if I can help with anything. When is the
signing? Who are you wanting there from EMPR?

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 11, 2018, at 5:17 PM, Waters, Cory IRR:EX <Cory.Waters @gov.bc.ca> wrote:

Fyi —tahltan signing this Friday, thought everyone was staying connected but now not
50 sure.

From: Waters, Cory IRR:EX

Sent: Monday, June 11, 2018 11:46 AM

To: Haslam, David GCPE:EX <David.Haslam@gov.bc.ca>

Cc: Cowan, Cale GCPE:EX <Cale.Cowan@gov.bc.ca>; Smyth, Danielle EMPR:EX
<Danielle.Smyth@gov.bc.ca>; Avila, Amy EMPR:EX <Amy.Avila@gov.bc.ca>
Subject: FW: FOR REVIEW: Tahltan ECDA announcement

Hoping the two of you are still connected on this signing event?

From: Cowan, Cale GCPE:EX

Sent: Monday, June 11, 2018 11:16 AM

To: Waters, Cory IRR:EX <Cory.Waters@gov.bc.ca>
Subject: Re: FOR REVIEW: Tahltan ECDA announcement
Do you have a contact at EMPR you can check with?
Thanks.

OnJun 11, 2018, at 10:38 AM, Waters, Cory IRR:EX
<Cory.Waters@gov.bc.ca> wrote:
Is EMPR attending?

From: Cowan, Cale GCPE:EX

Sent: Monday, June 11, 2018 9:24 AM

To: Oliemans, Fred IRR:EX <Fred.Oliemans@gov.bc.ca>

Cc: Robertson, Linda G IRR:EX <Linda.Robertson@gov.bc.ca>; Recknell,
Geoff IRR:EX <Geoff.Recknell@gov.bc.ca>; Waters, Cory IRR:EX
<Cory.Waters@gov.bc.ca>; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX
<Jamie.Disbrow@gov.bc.ca>: Plank, Sarah GCPE:EX
<Sarah.Plank@gov.bc.ca>

Subject: FOR REVIEW: Tahltan ECDA announcement

Hi, all.

Attached for your review and input is news release and QA for the Tahltan
ECDA announcement this Friday.

Event is now a private signing and meeting between Tahltan leaders and
MSF in the morning followed by news release in the afternoon.
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News release will be produced jointly with Tahltan, so your prompt
attention to any feeback is appreciated. If you can, please keep all notes
on one document.

QA is updated from Nisga’a announcement. Co-operation and Benefits
Agreement information was confirmed by Pretium.

Thanks,

Cale

Cale Cowan

Public Affairs Officer

Government Communications and Public Engagement
Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation
250-356-7324 0

250-812-4510¢
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From: Waters, Cory IRRIEX

To: Oliemans, Fred IRR:EX; Kerr, Paul IRR:EX; Disbrow, Jamie IRR:EX; Ward, Colin IRR:EX; Bal ri EX;
McCarthy, Tom IRR:EX; Cowan, Cale GCPE:EX; Plank, Sarah GCPE:EX; Smyth, Danielle EMPR:EX; Robb, Peter L.
EMPR:EX

Cc: Sam, Anne-Marie IRR:EX; Youell, Brandie IRR:EX

Subject: FW: Images - Tahltan Meeting with Hon. Scott Fraser

Date: Friday, June 15, 2018 11:53:33 AM

All,  wanted to share the link to photos from today’s Brucejack RSA signing with Tahltan leadership.
The event was excellent and as you will see, Tahltan presented MSF with a beautiful salmon print.
Congratulations to all that helped finalize the RSA and contributed to helping with today’s event.
Sorry you couldn’t have been here to get the credit you are all due!!!

Cory Waters

A/Chief Negotiator, North

Negotiations and Regional Operations Division

Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation

W: 778.678.9295 C: 250.812.4751

From: Cowan, Cale GCPE:EX

Sent: Friday, June 15, 2018 11:22 AM

To: 'Maia Schor'

Cc: Waters, Cory IRR:EX

Subject: RE: Images - Tahltan Meeting with Hon. Scott Fraser
This is great, Maia.

Thanks.

Cale

From: Maia Schor [mailto:mschor@castlemaingroup.com]
Sent: Friday, June 15, 2018 11:12 AM

To: Cowan, Cale GCPE:EX

Cc: Waters, Cory IRR:EX

Subject: Images - Tahltan Meeting with Hon. Scott Fraser

Hi Cale,

I was at the meeting with the Tahltan Representatives and Hon. Scott Fraser this morning
taking some pictures of the signing.

You can find the edited photos here:
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/crntdvtglebgl g/ AAAUGwWF91dIMSCgoxuTXADcla?d1=0
Please let me know if you need anything else.

Thank you,

Maia Schor

Associate, Strategic Engagement & Communications
e: mschor@castlemaingroup.com

p: 604.336.8802

c¢: 204.990.5894

The Castlemain Group | www.castlemain.com
1660 1075 W rgia Str Vancouver, BC VBE
Suite 200 22 St. Clair East 2nd Floor, Toron N M4T 2
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